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Consolidated Income Statement

(Year ended 31 March 2012)
(BE-Z——=A=1T—HItFE)

Notes 2012 2011
FiteE —2--F —F——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET T

REVENUE EEWA 5 1,445,968 1,164,762
Cost of sales SHEE AN (1,148,891) (889,006)
Gross profit EF 297,077 275,756
Other income and gains E A R e 5 8,853 21,390
Selling and distribution costs $HE MDA (17,514) (15,980)
Administrative expenses TR X (131,370) (122,201)
Finance costs B E R A 6 (4,570) =
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R AR F 7 152,476 158,965
Income tax expense FrisfiF sz 10 (32,148) (27,633)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO 72 T)#H A FE(L

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 11 120,328 131,332

HK cents HK cents
B4l A

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO A T#E AEWL

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY sR2R 13

Basic HK 24.1 26.3

Diluted b D] 24.1 26.3
Details of dividends are disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements. % BEF BN ISR M2 -

Agq
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SeEHINER

(Year ended 31 March 2012)
(BEZZ——F=RA=1+—HILFE)

Notes 2012 2011
gz e —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEHERN 120,328 131,332
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hh 2wz~
INCOME/(EXPENSE) (%)
Revaluation surplus on leasehold HETHREF 2 BMHABH
land and buildings 14 19,820 9,224
Income tax effect sz 2 (4,368) (3,048)
15,452 6,176
Exchange differences on translation of WHEIBINETS 2 B X =58
foreign operations 32,741 24,314
Realisation of exchange fluctuation reserve 551 B A BIRFE X
upon deregistration of subsidiaries RENHE 2 KR 30 - (11,739)
32,741 12,575
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEHMEERE -
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (BNRFE) 48,193 18,751
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ARAREEAEBIEFE
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE E2HERREHE
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 168,521 150,083
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e IR AR R

(31 March 2012)
(=2—=—f=A=+—R1)

Notes 2012 2011
FiteE —2--F —F——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R MR 14 828,418 577,372
Prepaid land lease payments TEf b & FRIA 15 78,470 77,108
Deposits e 16 10,679 12,884
Goodwill EES 17 26,112 26,112
Total non-current assets JEREBEERE 943,679 693,476
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 19 244,961 192,249
Accounts and bills receivables EURBE R R = 20 141,955 81,354
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables B ZkI8 « &4 K H b el 08 16 34,131 16,162
Cash and cash equivalents He RIS EEAR 21 371,986 183,037
Total current assets MEEERE 793,033 472,802
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEE
Accounts and bills payables JERTRRF R . 22 103,364 73,828
Accrued liabilities and other payables FERTAEREMENFRIE 24 80,845 94,164
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTEIRITER 25 418,896 =
Tax payable FERT IR 29,626 17,772
Total current liabilities mEEEEE 632,731 185,764
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 160,302 287,038
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEZBEHBRRBEE 1,103,981 980,514
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREEE
Deferred tax liabilities BELEHEBE 26 35,119 30,205
Net assets BEFE 1,068,862 950,309
EQUITY =N
Equity attributable to owners AR BEEAELES
of the Company
Issued capital BB TR A 27 4,997 4,997
Reserves i 29 1,063,865 945,312
Total equity BERGRE 1,068,862 950,309

CHUNG YUK SING

CHEN HSIAO YING

EEH BN
M Director Director
EE 3
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

(Year ended 31 March 2012)

(BE=T——F=A=1+—HLLFE)

Share Statutory  Exchange Asset
Issued  premium Capital surplus fluctuation revaluation  Retained
Notes capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
2B R4} EE Ex BE
(i3 A HER EXfE  RHEE  RBRE E6RE  89EA @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT TET BT TAT Thx TAT THEx TET
(Note 29)  (Note 29)
(Ktak29)  (Bik29)
At 1 April 2010 \_Z-ZFNA—AH 4,997 472,586 (229) 15,884 66,832 24,893 310,203 895,166
Profit for the year FREA = = - - - - 131332 131332
Other comprehensive income & H# 2 E Y
for the year:
Revaluation surplus on HEHRIETF 2 E M
leasehold land and Rtk EMREE
buildings, net of tax - - - - - 6,176 - 6,176
Exchange differences on WEBINEBZESR
translation of foreign E8
operations - - - - 24314 - - 24314
Realisation of exchange ST B A R ER
fluctuation reserve upon REEE LS
deregistration of subsidiaries - - - - (11,739) - - (11,739
Total comprehensive income  FE 2 HENEASE
for the year - - - - 12,575 6,176 131,332 150,083
Transfer to reserve BREGEE - - - 3,976 - = (3,976) =
Release upon deregistration S IEHBA TR
of a subsidiary - - - (4,757) - - 4,757 -
Final 2010 dividend declared ~ EER=F—ZTFRHKE 12 = = = = = = (34978) (34978
Interim 2011 dividend —2——FhEkE 12 - - - - - - (59,962)  (59,962)
At 31 March 2011 R-E—%=A=1+—H 4,997 472,586* (229)* 15,103* 79,407* 31,069 347,376* 950,309
At 1 April 2011 —T——%pmA—A 4,997 472,586 (229) 15,103 79,407 31,069 347376 950,309
Profit for the year FEREAN - - - - - - 120328 120328
Other comprehensive income  FE H {2 E Uz
for the year:
Revaluation surplus on HEHRETFZER
leasehold land and R BEMBRHIE
buildings, net of tax - - - - - 15,452 - 15,452
Exchange differences on WEBMNEBZER
translation of foreign ]
operations - - - - 32,741 - - 32,741
Total comprehensive income  FE 2 ENEESE
for the year - - - - 32,741 15,452 120,328 168,521
Transfer to reserve R - - - 2,432 - - (2,432) -
Final 2011 dividend declared ~ BER-Z——FKHKRE 12 - - - - - - (14990)  (14,990)
Interim 2012 dividend R FRERE 12 - - - - - - (34,978) (34,978)
At 31 March 2012 —E-—FZR=+—H 4,997 472,586* (229)* 17,535%  112,148* 46,521*  415,304* 1,068,862
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$1,063,865,000 * ZERBERRBEING S VBIKARANGEHE

(2011: HK$945,312,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

1,063,865,000/% 7T ( =& — — 4 : 945,312,000/%

JL) e
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

SEBRETRER

(Year ended 31 March 2012)
(BE=Z——F=RA=1+—HILFHE)

Notes 2012 2011
B E —E—=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEBEECHERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax R A& A 152,476 158,965
Adjustments for: LIATIER A% -
Finance costs R R 6 4,570 =
Bank interest income RITH BUA 5 (3,933) (1,243)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEDE - BEM
plant and equipment A A 2 Wa 5 (181) (78)
Write-off of items of property, Wi - BE &
plant and equipment REEE 7 2 -
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries I B A A 2 Was 5 - (18,663)
Reversal of a revaluation deficit on IR E i &
leasehold land and buildings BFELEIE 5 (3,886) (501)
Revaluation deficit on leasehold HELHK
land and buildings EFEHEE 7 - 3,900
Depreciation TE 7 41,800 37,271
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments  FE{< + 8 & I8 £ 4 7 2,267 2,042
193,115 181,693
Increase in inventories FEE (52,712) (55,995)
Decrease/(increase) in accounts FEWBE TR R EER L (38 hn)
and bills receivables (60,601) 75,213
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TEFRIR « H2E READRELR
deposits and other receivables IR (3Eh) (17,716) 1,013
Increase in accounts and bills payables PR BRI R ZE R AN 29,536 7,623
Increase/(decrease) in accrued liabilities FExtEERE M RENRIE
and other payables i/ CRd) (13,319) 37,725
Cash generated from operations BEELEZRS 78,303 247,272
Interest paid BRFE (4,570) =
Dividends paid BRRE (49,968) (94,940)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BREBREH (17,571) (16,181)
Overseas tax paid BREINRIA (3,030) (11,049)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEARESEK 2B REFE 3,164 125,102
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES #REEFBELZRERE
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEME - BEMREIER
plant and equipment, net FriS IR F#E 360 115
Purchases of items of property, BEEME  BER
plant and equipment JiEIER (246,822) (267,956)
Increase in deposits RS IE - (12,884)
Increase in prepaid land lease payments FEfT LR EFOEE M - (4,282)
Decrease/(increase) in non-pledged BARTEHBBS
deposits with original maturity of =18 A ZFEERFH
over three months when acquired S (3 hn) 21 (30,162) 3,443
Interest received BEUFIE 3,933 1,243
ARKRE RS2 R mEFE (272,691) (280,321)

A Net cash flows used in investing activities

Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited &35 (BIFR)ZERAR A A



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

FERERERGA)
(Year ended 31 March 2012)
(BZE-T——F=A=1+—HILFE)

Notes 2012 2011
B eE —EB-C=fF —E——%F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEZBEEZHERE
New bank loans FRITER 644,600 =
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (225,704) =
Net cash flows from financing activities REME R REREFE 418,896 =
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH ReREELSEER
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS g, (BD)#E 149,369 (155,219)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHzREeRREEMBEEE
beginning of year 183,037 324,692
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net  [EXR& &) r 2% 9,418 13,564
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZ2EERBALEEER
AT END OF YEAR 341,824 183,037
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERAELEEERAZ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EERD T
Cash and bank balances Re RRITET 21 175,583 183,037
Non-pledged time deposits with original BAREIHE DR
maturity of less than three months =@AZIEEHR
when acquired EHIER 21 166,241 =
Non-pledged time deposits with original BARTINH A BR
maturity of more than three months ={EAZIEER
when acquired EHER 21 30,162 =
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the A BRI RETRA
consolidated statement of financial position ReMRE&EEER 371,986 183,037
Non-pledged time deposits with original BARTELDHE BB
maturity of more than three months =EAZIFER
when acquired TE BiTF R 21 (30,162) =
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the FEReRERMETNERES K
consolidated statement of cash flows ReEMEER 341,824 183,037

Awgq
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Statement of Financial Position

BRI R

(31 March 2012
(=2—=—f=A=+—R1)

Notes 2012 2011
k=3 —E——F =4
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AT ZIEE 18 43,368 43,368
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Due from subsidiaries FEUTHT B A R R IE 18 868,946 681,622
Loan to a subsidiary BB ARIZER 18 249,000 -
Prepayments TEfRIE 16 138 138
Cash and cash equivalents BEhBEESEER 21 369 269
Total current assets BB ERE 1,118,453 682,029
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEME
Due to subsidiaries FERHI B A TIFRIA 18 359,664 248,933
Accrued liabilities Extas 24 157 452
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STERRITIER 25 234,000 =
Total current liabilities BB (B 593,821 249,385
NET CURRENT ASSETS HREBEEZHE 524,632 432,644
Net assets BEFE 568,000 476,012
EQUITY BR
Issued capital BT 27 4,997 4,997
Reserves & 29 563,003 471,015
Total equity AREE 568,000 476,012

CHUNG YUK SING
B

Director

£

Agq
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Notes to Financial Statements
B AR R M T

(31 March 2012)
(ZZ2—=F=A=+—8)

2.1

Corporate Information

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Units 0902-0903 and 0905-0906, 9/F, Tower B, Regent
Centre, 70 Ta Chuen Ping Street, Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong.

The Group’s principal activities are the manufacture and trading of
sportswear and garments.

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance

with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
leasehold land and buildings, which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2012. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All intra-
group balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting
from intra-group transactions and dividends are eliminated on
consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed to the
non-controlling interest even if that results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)

the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,

(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)

the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair
value of any investment retained and (jii) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss or retained profits, as appropriate.
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2.2

60

Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for

the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendment Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Limited
Exemption from Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time Adopters

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HK(FRIC)-Int 14
Amendments

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
Equity Instruments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
issued in May 2010

Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of
HKAS 24 (Revised), and amendments to HKFRS 3, HKAS 1 and
HKAS 27 included in Improvements to HKFRSs 2010, the adoption
of the new and revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial
effect on these financial statements.

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are
as follows:

(a) HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the definitions
of related parties. The new definitions emphasise a
symmetrical view of related party relationships and clarify
the circumstances in which persons and key management
personnel affect related party relationships of an entity.
The revised standard also introduces an exemption from
the general related party disclosure requirements for
transactions with a government and entities that are
controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced

by the same government as the reporting entity. The
accounting policy for related parties has been revised to
reflect the changes in the definitions of related parties
under the revised standard. The adoption of the revised
standard did not have any impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group. Details of the related party
transactions, including the related comparative information,
are included in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited &35 (BIFR)ZERAR A A

2.2

SRR ERE

R B AN E B TS IRR B IRRAAIA TH
AT M EMERT BB IS LR o

BRMBREER BERBREEREREL
bS] BB BHEER
—BAFRNEGEDBE
LR ET T BT
BHIEREE 2]
B giEd BEALZHE
E245(18157T)
A5 (EREBERE B5(ERUERERE
REZEE)- ZEE)-ZBE 4R
REBEIAREBL  BENREELERZ2ER]
s (BERBBRE UEZTRAZEZHER
REZED)-
REE195
—E-FFEF HIT-SFERRBEAC
BIBHREER ZIBABUBREERZ
i B3]

BRI T XA — S MEEREE &5 ER|
E245(FKYBRT) - ANRB B REER
F3% - BAGHEAUBVRLRBEGE
AIE27SR 2 BRI BB R —F—FFEEH
BHEER 2 HE NI RNZERR] R
RAESET BBV S RN S 2 T 75
BRELEAVBEE -

KA SH T RGBT B B
EEHENT

8

(@) BB ERE24R(KERT)H
BALZHKE

B GETERIE 245 (BIERT) B
BEBCEEALZES - EH
sRAREA TR 2 BREE - E
PRALREREEABRE—EE
BREBBALTBEREZER - ZLER]
AR ARE BERERFHFRF
—BTES] - AEERIREATE
ZERETRDZ —REAEALTH
BHREHR  EHRMEALZE
SR ARRERT - MRREE
FIEAZBEALTEREE o ;R
AAMERT R I S AN ER 8 2 B 75
AN EERIREREMZE - B
BALRSHFB(RIEEBLR
BERhEN A M RG34 -



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B s R MY (4

(31 March 2012)
(Z2—=F=A=+—8)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures
(Continued)

(b) Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 issued in May 2010 sets out
amendments to a number of HKFRSs. There are separate
transitional provisions for each standard. While the adoption
of some of the amendments may result in changes in
accounting policies, none of these amendments has had
a significant financial impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group. Details of the key amendments
most applicable to the Group are as follows:

o HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: The amendment
clarifies that the amendments to HKFRS 7, HKAS
32 and HKAS 39 that eliminate the exemption for
contingent consideration do not apply to contingent
consideration that arose from business combinations
whose acquisition dates precede the application of
HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008).

In addition, the amendment limits the scope of
measurement choices for non-controlling interests.
Only the components of non-controlling interests
that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are measured
at either fair value or at the present ownership
instruments’ proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components

of non-controlling interests are measured at

their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by another HKFRS.

The amendment also added explicit guidance to
clarify the accounting treatment for non-replaced
and voluntarily replaced share-based payment
awards.

° HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
The amendment clarifies that an analysis of each
component of other comprehensive income can
be presented either in the statement of changes in
equity or in the notes to the financial statements.
The Group elects to present the analysis of each
component of other comprehensive income in the
statement of changes in equity.

° HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements: The amendment clarifies that the
consequential amendments from HKAS 27 (as
revised in 2008) made to HKAS 21, HKAS 28 and
HKAS 31 shall be applied prospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 or earlier
if HKAS 27 is applied earlier.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 12 Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)
HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 32 Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Annual Improvements

Project

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Severe
Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed
Dates for First-time Adopters’

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Government
Loans*

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets'

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities*

Financial Instrumentsé

Consolidated Financial Statements*
Joint Arrangements*

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities*
Fair Value Measurement*

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Presentation
of Financial Statements — Presentation
of Iltems of Other Comprehensive
Income3

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes
— Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
Assets?

Employee Benefits*

Separate Financial Statements*

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures*

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities>

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine*

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-
2011 Cycle*

Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited &35 (BIFR)ZERAR A A

BB REER
E15RE]

BB REER
EYEiH H)

BRMBRE %R
FIHRERT

AR EREER
F9%

BBIS RS A
$105%

ARG EREER
F115%

BBIE RS A
£1258

ARG EREER
F13%

BEERE 1R
E3)

BB ER
F125%E7T

EEeHERE 195
(z2——F)
EEGERE275
(ZF——%F)
EEesHEr|F285
(z8——F)
EBGHER

F35R(ERT

EE(EBRTBHRS
REZEE) -2
BE20%

FEMEE

>H.
u
>>3‘\:
&
A
palllg
—
b
W
ik
s_‘
o
o
>am
&
o
ity
53d
Iff

BRMBHREEF 15
BAERRE BB RS
Eh)-REFBKL G
BARBENEE AL
ek

BRMBHREEAE 15
BAEOE N BHE
L -BfTE R

BRI REENETR
EHTA: F#FE—
EE L HEE B

BN BREERETR
PHTA: #FE—
e BEER
EHBEZET

SHTAS

BARFRE
HEZH
RERAMEB2 M
AT 8

BEGHEAR IR
ABHxZE5—
At 2EREELZ
I 2]

BEEERF125
Frist —EEHR -
KETEEE 2]

ERHEF)

BUHBHx
REERRRE ETLFRE

BRGIEAERR
EHTA: 25—
HHTHEER
EREEZIERT

BXBLLEERZ
SRR A

ZEENEZT——F
FERBIEIREER
i 25



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
e BT )
(31 March 2012)

(=F—

2.3

2.4
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Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong 2.3
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application and is
not yet in a position to state whether they would have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial position.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company's investments in subsidiaries that are not classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition

date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control

of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether it measures the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred.
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2.4

64

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes
the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value as at the acquisition date
through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes
to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to
be an asset or liability will be recognised in accordance with HKAS
39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive
income. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it will
not be remeasured. Subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. In instances where the contingent consideration does not
fall within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance with
the appropriate HKFRS.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of

the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed
of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill
disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative
values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
financial assets and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the income statement in the period in
which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with
the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as

to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.

A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not

to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such impairment loss is credited to the income statement
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for
that revalued asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group;
or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the

other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(viiy  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the income statement in the period in which it
is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts

of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair
value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying
amount. Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment
are dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the
total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual
asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the income
statement. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the
income statement to the extent of the deficit previously charged.
On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
transferred to retained profits as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost or valuation of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land under Over the lease terms

finance leases

Buildings

Leasehold improvements

2% to 15%

Over the lease terms or 20%,
whichever is shorter

10% to 20%

20%

Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures, equipment
and motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value
of the minimum lease payments and recorded together with the
obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance leases,
including prepaid land lease payments under finance leases, are
included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to the income
statement so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over
the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial investments, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs, except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

The Group's financial assets include cash and cash equivalents,
accounts and bills receivables and other receivables.

Subsequent measurement — Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest

rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
income in the income statement. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the income statement in finance costs for loans.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either

(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks

and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent
of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.4

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss
event”) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate
for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the income statement. Interest income continues to be accrued
on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with
any associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or
has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other
expenses in the income statement.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the

case of loans and borrowings, directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include accounts and bills payables,
and other payables.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4

(Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement — Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would

be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if, and
only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price
for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.

For financial instruments where there is no active market, the fair
value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Such
techniques include using recent arm'’s length market transactions;
reference to the current market value of another instrument which is
substantially the same; and a discounted cash flow analysis.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4

(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk

of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.4

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4
(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants, including a subsidy for the expenditure
incurred in the construction cost of an infrastructure project, are
recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income over the periods necessary to match the grant
on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate.
Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is deducted

from the carrying amount of the asset and released to the income
statement by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(i) from the sale of goods and samples, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;
and
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
RIS SRR MIE ()

(31 March 2012)
(Z2—=F=A=+—8)

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Employee benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group

in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.

In addition, the Group operates a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme (the “Retirement Scheme”) for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the Retirement Scheme.
Contributions to the Retirement Scheme are charged to the income
statement as incurred. The Retirement Scheme operates in a similar
way to the MPF Scheme, except that when an employee leaves the
Retirement Scheme before his/her interest in the Group’s employer
contributions vests fully, the ongoing contributions payable by

the Group are reduced by the relevant amount of the forfeited
employer contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to make contributions for their employees
who are registered as permanent residents in Mainland China. The
contributions are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
e EL AT )

(31 March 2012)

(=2—=—F=A=+—A1)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily

take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended

use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets

are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company'’s functional and presentation currency.

Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity

are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates ruling

at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
All differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are taken to the income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined. The gain or
loss arising on retranslation of a non-monetary item is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or income
statement are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
income statement, respectively).
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.4

—F=RA=+—H)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of

the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities

are translated into the presentation currency of the Company at
the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period and
their income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal
of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in
the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Significant Accounting Judgement and 3.
Estimates

The preparation of the Group'’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions

that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of
the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from those
involving estimations, which has the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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(31 March 2012)

(=2—=—F=A=+—A1)

Significant Accounting Judgement and 3.

Estimates (Continued)

Judgement (Continued)

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or whether the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group has
to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred that may affect
the asset value, or such an event affecting the asset value has not
been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can
be supported by the net present value of future cash flows, which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management to determine the level of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could have a material effect on the net
present value used in the impairment test.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Estimation of fair value of leasehold land and buildings of the
Group

As described in note 14, the leasehold land and buildings were
revalued at the end of the reporting period on a market value
existing state basis by independent professional valuers. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions, which are subject
to uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual results.
In making the judgements, the Group considers information from
current prices in an active market for similar properties and uses
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at
the end of the reporting period.

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment, the Group has to consider various
factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence arising from
changes or improvements in production, or from a change in the
market demand for the product or service output of the asset,
expected usage of the asset, expected physical wear and tear,

the care and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits
on the use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of the
asset is based on the experience of the Group with similar assets
that are used in a similar way. Additional depreciation is made

if the estimated useful lives and/or the residual values of items

of property, plant and equipment are different from previous
estimation. Useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each
financial year end date based on changes in circumstances.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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(31 March 2012)
(Z2—=F=A=+—8)

3.  Significant Accounting Judgement and 3.

Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31
March 2012 was HK$26,112,000 (2011: HK$26,112,000). Further
details are given in note 17.

Impairment allowance for doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment allowance for doubtful debts

based on an assessment of the recoverability of accounts and bills
receivables. Allowances are applied to accounts and bills receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of doubtful debts requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome

or expectation in future is different from the original estimate,

such differences will have an impact on the carrying value of the
receivables and doubtful debt expenses/write-back in the period in
which such estimate has been changed.

4. Operating Segment Information 4,

For management purposes, the Group determines that there are
five reportable operating segments, based on location of customers
(the destination of sales), including Mainland China, Europe, the
United States of America (the “USA"), Japan and others. These
segments are managed separately as each segment is subject to
risks and returns that are different from each other.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit
before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit before
tax except that interest income and other unallocated income, and
unallocated expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude unallocated assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BI85 B i ()

(31 March 2012)

(===

4.

F=A=+—H)
Operating Segment Information (Continued) 4. REFFER @
Segment liabilities exclude unallocated liabilities as these liabilities ""‘EQ%\T\@%%{ FEREE - REEZE
are managed on a group basis. BEEEEER
Group - 2012 KEH-—FBE——F
Mainland
China Europe USA Japan Others Consolidated
hE AR B 28 BR  HfitE ma
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TER THER TR TR TR
Segment revenue: DEREEWA
Sales to external customers HETIHREE 468,696 437,192 189,431 88,685 261,964 1,445,968
Segment results NERER 62,576 71,674 31,673 14,782 46,469 221,174
Interest and other unallocated income 8 R E A DEYA 8,853
Unallocated expenses AOELH (83,551)
Profit before tax BRER A& A 152,476
Income tax expense FEHAT (32,148)
Profit for the year attributable to KATER AL
owners of the Company EREA 120,328
Segment assets NEBE 275,153 268,567 140,678 34,732 133,525 852,655
Unallocated assets KORAE 884,057
1,736,712
Segment liabilities HEER 83,092 43,839 28,635 21,036 29,028 205,630
Unallocated liabilities KokaE 462,220
667,850
Other segment information: EnEar
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH 8,656 9,733 5,133 1,479 5,072 30,073
Unallocated amounts AOEEH 13,994
44,067
Capital expenditure* BARY 13,509 18,075 10,004 2,444 8,950 53,072
Unallocated amounts AOEEHE 195,955
249,027
* Capital expenditure represents additions to property, plant and * BARZREYE  BERZENRE -

equipment.

B> {

82

Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited &35 (BIFR)ZERAR A A



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B 3R B ()
(31 March 2012)
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4.

equipment and prepaid land lease payments.

—&=A=+—H)
Operating Segment Information (Continued) 4. REIBFER®
Group — 2011 rEFH-—F——&F
Mainland
China Europe USA Japan Others  Consolidated
HEIARE B XE BR  Efuts ma
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR THT THT
Segment revenue: PEEEWA
Sales to external customers HETIRER 391,304 312,857 167,195 94,133 199,273 1,164,762
Segment results PEEE 59,114 70,473 29,216 16,288 36,668 211,759
Interest and other unallocated income ~ F|8 REMARAEMA 21,390
Unallocated expenses P e (74,184)
Profit before tax STl 158,965
Income tax expense FEHES (27,633)
Profit for the year attributable to AYNST: 2N L
owners of the Company ERRH 131,332
Segment assets PEEE 204,223 191,159 143,603 33,184 129,400 701,569
Unallocated assets AAOEEE 464,709
1,166,278
Segment liabilites PRAR 75811 27,776 21,050 3,995 22,286 150,918
Unallocated liabilities KOBAME 65,051
215,969
Other segment information: HihpBER
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH 8,281 1,271 4,779 1,909 4,498 26,744
Unallocated amounts rPELE 12,569
39,313
Capital expenditure® BARY* 6,760 1,552 6,650 1,468 4,965 27,395
Unallocated amounts FOEEE 287,007
314,402
* Capital expenditure represents additions to property, plant and * BARZRKRYE  BERREHFER

AN LA EROR
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

5o 95 3 o B o (4D

(31 March 2012)
(ZZ—=F=F=+—18)

4. Operating Segment Information (Continued)

Geographical information — non-current assets

4.

KReEsEER (@)

HWEEN-FRBEE

2012 2011
= —F %

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Hong Kong a5 38,319 40,371
Mainland China PR B K e 773,733 582,738
Indonesia ENfE 131,627 70,367
943,679 693,476

The non-current assets information above is based on the location

of the assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue of HK$910,248,000 (2011: HK$559,874,000) and
HK$245,002,000 (2011: HK$203,329,000) were derived from sales
to the largest customer and the second largest customer of the
Group respectively. The above amounts include sales to group of
entities which are known to be under common control with these

customers.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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5.

—#£=A=+—8)

Revenue, Other Income and Gains

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the net
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and
trade discounts. All significant intra-group transactions have been

eliminated on consolidation.

An analysis of the Group's revenue, other income and gains is as

5. EXRWA-

BEWARAREE L5 - THEHIRER
ERESTNREEEMIBERFE - K
SERREMBEARZERGER KA R

H W AR W s

REBZEWA - HEWA R Z D

follows: W
2012 2011
= e
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Revenue EERA
Sale of goods BEmiHE 1,445,968 1,164,762
Other income Heg A
Bank interest income RITH BUA 3,933 1,243
Others HAith 853 905
4,786 2,148
Gains Wz
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries B AR 2 W
(Note 30 (ii)) (FHE30(i) - 18,663
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME - WEKEEEE
plant and equipment bl 181 78
Reversal of a revaluation deficit on OERE i RIEF S ER
leasehold land and buildings 3,886 501
4,067 19,242
Other income and gains H A R e 8,853 21,390
Finance Costs 6. mBERAE
2012 2011
—ZT—_—F —T——F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable ARFRNBEHERZRT
within five years EXF & 4,570 -

—E—=

%
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B A6 85 2 YT ()

(31 March 2012)
(ZZ—=F=F=+—18)

7.  Profit Before Tax 7.  BRBIFDEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): AN B B R B AR IR (GTA) THI&
17
2012 2011
—E-CfF %
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FH&T
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEEKA 1,148,891 889,006
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEB & 2,072 1,743
Depreciation (Note 14)* e (MisE14)> 41,800 37,271
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments TEfT L0 SRR
(Note 15)* (BtaF15)* 2,267 2,042
Employee benefits expenses BERAIH(TRIEESEMHE -
(excluding directors’ remuneration — Note 8): HizEs) -
Wages and salaries TERF® 288,535 218,953
Pension scheme contributions RIS FT IR
(defined contribution schemes) (FEEHETED 26,079 15,976
Less: Forfeited contributions B BRI (174) (105)
Net pension scheme contributions RARETEIHFER 25,905 15,871
Total employee benefits expenses* BIEEBFIZ 314,440 234,824
Minimum lease payments under operating THREFEEHEECRERS
leases in respect of land and buildings* INE N 2,797 2,959
Foreign exchange differences, net R ZRFE 3,766 5,027
Revaluation deficit on leasehold HE T REFEGEE*
land and buildings** - 3,900
Write-off of items of property, WEEYZE - BRE REEIEE
plant and equipment 2 -

Agq
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3 Included in the respective balances are the following amounts which are L BHEESRTEEUTHALXAREDE
also included in the cost of inventories sold disclosed above: FERAZ R :

2012 2011

e —F——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBx FHET

Depreciation e 28,261 24,709

Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments TafT + 330 &R IEE 8 1,812 1,608

Employee benefits expenses REBFIZH 253,594 186,325

Minimum lease payments under operating leases in THREFELHEY
respect of land and buildings RS R 2,790 2,911
53 Revaluation deficit on leasehold land and buildings was included under b HEL M RBEFEGB R AREERA

“administrative expenses” on the face of the income statement.
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8. Directors’ Remuneration 8.

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

EEME

REEEEMERBEBBHERZAER
AAER ETARRN( EARA D REEA
AERDIZE 161 GRIENT ¢

Group
rEE
2012 2011
= i
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Fees W 360 360
Other emoluments: Hiis :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R NREYEF 3,224 3,224
Discretionary bonuses BIBIEAT 7,674 8,829
Pension scheme contributions BIRE TR 446 241
11,344 12,294
11,704 12,654
(@) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIUKHITEE

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during
the year were as follows:

FARNTFEILIENITESE 2SN
T~

2012 2011

—E-—F —T——%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FH&T

Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho BREZ KL 120 120
Mr. Li Chi Chung RIS E 120 120
Mr. Cheng Yung Hui, Tony BRER B 120 120
360 360

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year (2011:
Nil).

FALEEMEMNBLIFNTES
ZHE(=F——F: &) -
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8. Directors’ Remuneration (Continued) 8. EEMew
(b) Executive directors (b) HITE=S
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
e BER Bk
ik BB iR TR el
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THET THER THET TERT
2012 —E-CF
Executive directors: WITES :
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing BEAEE - 1,664 3,468 230 5,362
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying U= - 1,560 3,284 216 5,060
Mr. Kuo Tai Yu BRGFE - - 461 - 461
Ms. Chen Fang Mei, Christina RS & &+ - - 461 - 461
- 3,224 7,674 446 11,344
2011 —F——&
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing BERALE - 1,664 3,963 124 5,751
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying SNt = 1,560 3,530 117 5,207
Mr. Kuo Tai Yu DR E - - 668 - 668
Ms. Chen Fang Mei, Christina RS %=& £ - - 668 - 668
- 3,224 8,829 241 12,294
There was no arrangement under which a director waived REFAWEBAAESREXRERETE
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. B 2 ZHE -
The directors’ remuneration shown above does not include L FIREEFM S IR B IERF AR
the estimated monetary value of the Group's owned TEEEEALERESENETEEF
premises provided rent-free to an executive director, EMEZGHEE BEZT—ZF=
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing, during the year. The estimated rental RA=+—RIFE ZEBZHFEE
value of such accommodation was HK$117,000 (2011: 73117,0008 7L (—F——4 : 112,000
HK$112,000) for the year ended 31 March 2012. JC) ©

Agq
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9. Five Highest Paid Employees 9.

The five highest paid employees during the year included two (2011:
two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining three (2011:
three) non-director, highest paid employees for the year ended 31
March 2012 are set out below:

TEREHFNES

N AEHRSFHEEEERE(ZF
——F:MBEF  ARANSHHNF
BEAELXHESRKE - REE—T——
FZA=+—HLEEER BT=HR(=
T——F: =ZR)RSMENIEZRER
M EFHBIT -

Group

AEH
2012 2011
= e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R NEYER 3,900 3,900
Discretionary bonuses BEIEAL 1,328 1,750
Pension scheme contributions RINSEEIHR 540 297
5,768 5,947

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

BENTFUTHENSSHHIEESREE
REE LT :

Number of employees

EEHE
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7%2,000,0007 7T 1 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 042,500,000/ 7T 2 1
3 3
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10.

Income Tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2011:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

W CIUE) RIZAR A A (“YM (Shantou)”) is entitled to be
exempted from corporate income tax in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") for the first two profit-making years and a 50%
reduction in corporate income tax for the succeeding three years.
Moreover, under the relevant tax laws and regulations in Mainland
China, this company may set off losses incurred by it in a financial
year against profits made by it in the succeeding financial year or
years, subject to a maximum of five financial years.

According to the confirmation obtained by the Group from the PRC
tax bureau, the first profit-making year of YM (Shantou) was the
year ended 31 December 2007.

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth National
People’s Congress passed the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
PRC (the “PRC Tax Law") which took effect on 1 January 2008. The
PRC income tax rate is unified to 25% for all enterprises. The State
Council of the PRC passed an implementation guidance note (the
“Implementation Guidance”) on 26 December 2007, which sets
out details of how the existing preferential income tax rates will be
adjusted to the standard rate of 25%.

For enterprises which were established before the publication of
the PRC Tax Law and were entitled to preferential treatments of

a reduced corporate income tax rate (“CIT rate”) granted by the
relevant tax authorities, the CIT rate might be gradually increased
from the preferential rate to 25% within 5 years after the effective
date of the PRC Tax Law on 1 January 2008. For the regions that
enjoy a reduced CIT rate at 15%, the rate would gradually increase
10 20% for 2009, 22% for 2010, 24% for 2011, and 25% for
2012 according to the grandfathering rules stipulated in the
Implementation Guidance and related circular. Enterprises that are
currently entitled to exemptions or reductions from the standard
income tax rate for a fixed term may continue to enjoy such
treatment until the fixed term expires.

10.

FRr&®i

BERMNBHAFRERBELENGTTER
TR MIZ16.5% (=T ——F : 16.5%)F
R o HAbih 5 RS A AFIE - 8l
BEANEEEEMERRNE M RT

s
B o
ZAr

#EOWSB) HX AR R R([#HEOWEE) 1)
AEReEMERMNEENPEARKM
BB BEMSHR - WRERER=F
BEHRBZE0%BEMGH o I - RIF
BRANTRAEREARRA - ZAR]A
RER—EMBEEEE 2 BE - K
RER—EXZERBEE 2@ A - Bk
ZISHBBAEMBRFEE

R R BB R R
CUB) W E BENFEARE-FTLE
T=ASt—RLEE -

RZZZTLF=A+"H ' F+EZEA
RRERREERAXEZCBBTRHCENS
FOR(HRRBENDR-_ZEENF—A—H
ER e FIBREZHBAMGHESL—A
25% c RZFEZEEF+=-A=+/"8
R E @B — (D EEIES| ([ BHEE
311) - AP H SR ENERMEHEE
TSI ET E25% M 7% °

B R BIRUEEMRIAKRSL - WEBARET
BHERTRECEMSHREIH R
EEHMEDNELEMS @ BEMAEHRE
AR AR BFEERZ B(BIZEENF
—A—B) R SFRNREEREZ LS
25% ° EEH 15% MR R EFSTHERN
HEME - RIBENE IS S RAEME®E K
FBESFR - DEMEHREBSFIN -
ThE —T—FTF —_T—FR-F
—ZFREIEINE20% ~ 22% ~ 24% K
25% ° BRI Z AR —BRE T HEESEE
TSP EREIUREMTE  AJEES

ZIBFS  EEZBRETHRERAL -
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10.

—#£=A=+—8)
Income Tax (Continued) 10. PFr8FiE)
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E-Cf —T——%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Current tax charge for the year: NEEREABIES W ¢
Hong Kong &% 21,888 17,711
Elsewhere Hithih Ty 10,590 7,926
Overprovision of current tax in respect BAFEREAT TH AR
of prior years (23) (3,596)
Deferred (Note 26) RIE(Fi5E26) (307) 5,592
Total tax charge for the year REERIAX B AR 32,148 27,633

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the statutory rates for the tax jurisdictions in which the
Company and majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax
expense at the effective tax rates is as follows:

TR ARR R R HARER S B RIALEE
MBS RLA R AE R R A E 2R ATS
M2z BB H R ER R KRG E 2 BIAR
XZREFIT

Group
rEH
2012 2011
—E-C-F —E——%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Profit before tax FR A A1 o ) 152,476 158,965
Tax at the applicable rates to profit R ARG R AR R TIER 2
in the tax jurisdictions concerned Rt E 2HiE 24,454 30,853
Lower tax rate due to tax holiday MBEEE P R K (2,755) (6,603)
Adjustments in respect of current tax BT FE AT E L R
of previous years (23) (3,596)
Income not subject to tax BARBZ A (1,291) (6,131)
Expenses not deductible for tax A 2 B 744 2,565
Effect of withholding tax at 5% and 10% NEARERZ R EHE AR
on the distributable profits of RIS 5% K
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries 10%TEHT 2 FF 2 - 5,185
Tax losses not recognised RIERBI &R 11,960 3,518
Others HAith (941) 1,842
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BEASEERRETE 2 HER L 32,148 27,633
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11.

12.

13.

92

Profit for the Year Attributable to Owners of 11.

the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2012 includes a loss of HK$4,294,000
(2011: HK$1,216,000) excluding dividend income from a subsidiary
of HK$142,000,000 (2011: HK$105,000,000) and interest income
from a subsidiary of HK$4,250,000 (2011: Nil) which has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company (note 29).

RN BHER ABALFEER

BE-_E——E=A=+—BItEE
RAREEABIGRAE S BIEEIE
4,294,000/ 7T ( —Z——4 : 1,216,000
BIL)  TEREREBEMBARMNKE
g A 142,000,000 0 ( = F — — F ¢
105,000,0007% 7T, ) & F 8. U A 4,250,000
BL(ZE——F : &)  ERARARHK
WERAR(HIFE29) ©

Dividends 12. RE
2012 2011
—E——fF —=——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Dividends paid during the year FAEMKRE
Final in respect of the financial year ended Bz =—®=A=+—HIt
31 March 2011 — HK3 cents per ordinary IR FE RIS — SRR
share (2011: final dividend of HK7 cents 3B =ZE——F - HEZT—
per ordinary share, in respect of ZE=A=+—HLETBFER
the financial year ended 31 March 2010) HARR B AR mAR 78 ) 14,990 34,978
Interim — HK7 cents (2011: HK12 cents) T E — B AR 7 B
per ordinary share ZE——F - 1274) 34,978 59,962
49,968 94,940
Proposed final dividends HK7 cents FRARERS — SR mR7E
(2011: HK3 cents) per ordinary share —E——F 3 34,978 14,990

The proposed final dividend for the year is based on the number

of shares in issue as at the reporting date, and is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. These financial statements do not reflect the
dividend payable.

Earnings Per Share Attributable to Owners of  13.

the Company

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company for the year

of HK$120,328,000 (2011: HK$131,332,000), and 499,680,000
(2011: 499,680,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011 as
the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during
those years.

Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited &35 (BIFR)ZERAR A A

RER 2 FRAR IR B THIRNHRE A D%
TRMBEFE - WAFARRBIRNE
ERFASFRKGIER - TAMEE - Kf
BRI ERREMIE

RRBFEAABEERER

BREARBFTIREFRARGEE AR
15 9F 73% F 120,328,000/ T ( — & ——
F 1 131,332,000 ) UERFAE
17 & 38 A% 499,680,000 8 (=& — —4F
499,680,0000%) 514 -
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment

14. 9% - BEKKRE

Group TEE
31 March 2012 —E-——fF=A=+—H
Furniture,
fixtures,
Leasehold equipment
land and Leasehold Plant and and motor  Construction
buildings  improvements machinery vehicles in progress Total
HE HE BE %8
THRET NELE  BERRE RERAE ERIE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#gn TR TR FHT Ti#En TR
Cost or valuation: A -
At beginning of year E4) 267,304 96,061 148,393 51,813 203,123 766,694
Additions NE - 10,338 42,734 8,724 187,231 249,027
Disposals L& - - - (809) - (809)
Written off i - (2,855) - - - (2,855)
Revaluation Bfh 14,729 - - - - 14,729
Exchange realignment [E3E 8,490 4,263 5,138 1,607 7617 27,115
At 31 March 2012 RZE-—%
=A=1+-H 290,523 107,807 196,265 61,335 397,971 1,053,901
Accumulated depreciation: RERE
At beginning of year 4] - 58,898 93,514 36,910 - 189,322
Provided during the year EREE 8,993 13,007 13,847 5,863 - 41,800
Disposals L& - - - (630) - (630)
Written off | - (2,853) - - - (2,853)
Write-back on revaluation BEEH (8,977) - - - - (8.977)
Exchange realignment ERAE (16) 2,661 3,016 1,160 - 6,821
At 31 March 2012 WZE——%
=A=1+-H - 71,803 110,377 43,303 - 225,483
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 March 2012 RZE-——%
=A=1+-AR 290,523 36,004 85,888 18,032 397,971 828,418
Analysis of cost or valuation: A EEDT :
At cost b E] - 107,807 196,265 61,335 397,971 763,378
At 31 March 2012 valuation BRN-Z-—F
=A=1-H
Z2fLE 290,523 - - - - 290,523
290,523 107,807 196,265 61,335 397,971 1,053,901

ey
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

14. Y¥ - - BERKE®)

Group rEE
31 March 2011 —E——%=H=+—H
Furniture,
fixtures,
Leasehold equipment
land and Leasehold Plant and andmotor  Construction
buildings  improvements machinery vehicles in progress Total
HE g RE KB
THRET nEEE HERRE HERAE ERIR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TAL TAL TAL TR
Cost or valuation: PXASRIEE -
At beginning of year 1 212,574 69,106 132,770 45,849 - 460,299
Additions AE 48,159 25,057 13,878 7,805 203,123 298,022
Disposals e - - - (1,120) = (1,120)
Written off b - (263) (1,531) (1,649) - (3,443)
Revaluation Bfh (219) - - - - (219)
Exchange realignment AR 6,790 2,161 3,276 928 - 13,155
At 31 March 2011 W%
o e = 267,304 96,061 148,393 51,813 203,123 766,694
Accumulated depreciation: LRBFE:
At beginning of year ) = 43,009 83,261 32,280 = 158,550
Provided during the year EREE 6,044 14,698 9,909 6,620 = 37,271
Disposals e - - - (1,083) = (1,083)
Written off | - (263) (1,531) (1,649) - (3,443)
Write-back on revaluation el (6,044) = = = = (6,044)
Exchange realignment i 5 5% - 1,454 1,875 742 = 4,071
At 31 March 2011 R4
ZA=1-H = 58,898 93514 36,910 - 189,322
Net book value: RETE:
At 31 March 2011 W%
=ZR=1+-H 267,304 37,163 54,879 14,903 203,123 571,372
Analysis of cost or valuation: RASIEER :
At cost BRAE - 96,061 148,393 51,813 203,123 499,390
At 31 March 2011 valuation RZE—F
ZA=t-H
AL 267,304 - - - - 267,304
267,304 96,061 148,393 51,813 203,123 766,694
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14.

Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

An analysis of the valuation of the land and buildings of the Group
at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Y - BRERRE®

PRERR - AEBEZ L MIEF 2 HE
DT :

2012 2011
—B-C-F —F—%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Land and buildings held on medium term REBARBRANFE 2 TR
leases in Hong Kong BF 32,200 26,000
Land and buildings held on medium term BB AN LA R BRFE 4045
leases outside Hong Kong 2t RiEF 255,249 238,551
Buildings held on long term REBAIMEE AR EAE A5 B
leases outside Hong Kong ZIEF 3,074 2,753
Total valuation FECRY =] 290,523 267,304

The Group'’s leasehold land and buildings were revalued individually
at 31 March 2012 by Greater China Appraisal Limited and Avista
Valuation Advisory Limited, independent professionally qualified
valuers, at an aggregate open market value of HK$290,523,000,
based on their existing use. Revaluation surpluses of HK$19,820,000
and HK$3,886,000 resulting from the above revaluation, were
credited to the statement of other comprehensive income and the
income statement, respectively. The effect of the total revaluation
surplus of HK$23,706,000 was reflected as an increase of valuation
of property, plant and equipment of HK$14,729,000 and write-
back of accumulated depreciation of HK$8,977,000.

Had these leasehold land and buildings been carried at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation, their carrying amounts would
have been HK$231,003,000 (2011: HK$232,170,000).

As at 31 March 2012, one of the Group's leasehold land

and buildings with a net book value of HK$907,000 (2011:
HK$847,000) has been provided as rent-free accommodation to an
executive director of the Company during the year (Note 15).

AEBCHETHREFHEBLIEES
B GEMZEETEBR AT R EH
EEABRARRZE—ZF=A4
—t—BERHEERHARUARMEERE
RIEEE + & $£18290,523,000/8 T ° kit
E {d AT 2= A 8 i & $2 19,820,000 7% 7T &
3,886,000 7t Bl 9 Bl 1 A H b 2 T Ui &
KRR - EfH A F23,706,000
IR ERMNYIE - BE KEHA-
B2 0014,729,0008 T & Bl # RIE T &
8,977,000/6 7T °

i A BT & + i R F IR £ A AR 258
WEZER - ERmERREA231,003,000
HBT(ZT——4F : 232,170,000/ °

N_ZT——F=fA=+—0 KE[EF
—IEBREF(EI07,0008 T (=T ——4 ¢
847,000/ 0) 2 & L ity RIEFHF AR
HFAQNFR—ZRTESERBER (K
15) o
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Prepaid Land Lease Payments 15. FEfLBEERE
Group
2012 2011
—E-CfF %
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHTT
Carrying amount at beginning of year FYRmEE 79,150 62,626
Additions NE - 16,380
Amortisation recognised during RENTEREE(FRE7)
the year (Note 7) (2,267) (2,042)
Exchange realignment P 5, A EE 3,882 2,186
Carrying amount at 31 March RZA=Z+—BZE\EE 80,765 79,150
Current portion included in prepayments, FTATERRUE - Re REMEWK
deposits and other receivables (Note 16) SIE 2 BNERER - (FfF5E16) (2,295) (2,042)
Non-current portion FERNERER 7 78,470 77,108

An analysis of the carrying amounts of prepaid land lease payments
of the Group at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

RIMERR - AEEBEMNTHESHRZ
REELHTD

2012 2011

= =T %

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FHTT

Long term leases outside Hong Kong BERRINZ RERFAL 3,399 3,343
Medium term leases outside Hong Kong BRI NZ R ERFAL 77,366 75,807
80,765 79,150

One of the Group’s prepaid land lease payments with a net book
value of HK$1,637,000 (2011: HK$1,588,000) in aggregate has
been provided as rent-free accommodation to an executive director

of the Company during the year (Note 14).
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16.

17.

Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

16. ANME BERHEMBER

MIE
Group Company
by 3| PN
Note 2012 2011 2012 2011
WE —F--F —B——% ZB--f —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT TET FHET
Prepaid land lease payments TER A & IR 15 2,295 2,042 - -
Deposit paid for construction FIFRMERE
projects in the Jiangxi Site EB(IAER D)
(the "Jiangxi Project”) Ze 6,773 9,602 - -
Deposits for property, B - BER
plant and equipment FBEL RS 3,906 3,282 - -
Prepayments B FE 10,840 8,656 138 138
Deposits and other receivables e RE MK FIE 20,996 5,464 - =
44,810 29,046 138 138
Current portion included in BIEETRNFIE -
prepayments, deposits and Be REAMERRIE
other receivables EIENERER 5 (34,131) (16,162) (138) (138)
Non-current portion FERNERES 7 10,679 12,884 - =

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The
financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables
for which there was no recent history of default.

AR M ESRE - RIEEN L
WHBR AN S BUAE + IR
s -

Goodwill 17. BHE
2012 2011
—E——F —ZE——%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Cost and carrying amount: BB R ARENE
At beginning and end of year RE) N FH 26,112 26,112

Agq
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17.

18.

98

F=RA=+—R)

Goodwill (Continued) 17.

The Group's goodwill was wholly allocated to a cash-generating
unit engaged in the manufacture and trading of sportswear and
garments (the “Unit”). The recoverable amount of the Unit has
been determined from the value in use, which is calculated with
reference to cash flow projections based on a five-year period
financial budgets approved by senior management. The financial
budgets are prepared reflecting actual and prior year performance
and development expectations. The key assumptions for the cash
flow projections are the budgeted gross margin which is the
average gross profit margin achieved in the year immediately before
budgeted years and the discount rate of 8.1%, which is before

tax and reflects specific risks relating to the Unit. The cash flow
projections are prepared based on the assumption that the cash-
generating unit will have revenue based on the actual sales order
amount and revenue forecast by the head of the sales department
for the first year, and then maintain a 5% growth rate thereafter.
The directors believe that any reasonably possible change in any of
these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount
of the Unit to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount. Since the
recoverable amount of the Unit is higher than its carrying amount,
the directors consider there was no impairment of the goodwill at
the end of the reporting period.

BE @

REE B2 MAGIEEEBRIKK
HERBECHEEBM([ZEM]) -

ZBM 2 RESERBEREEE
o mEABEIBEAERAEEASSE
#z AFHBBERAMBEAN RS RERT
#°%ﬁi§2%#ﬂ&%am TR
fﬁ&%ﬁé%ﬁ%’%@ i//\ugig EUZEE@]H—L
RETTEE 2 EFE(AEREREFERZ
FREMMERZ FHEME) REERE8.1%
(B%mw&&%ﬁuiuﬁ%Z%i@
M) ﬂ'fﬁuwum%*ﬂﬁ%fﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁzﬂ—r
%$5KH& R R ARE - R IDBIRER

HEESRENHEBEIEREFMIEDN
W TER - HRERS%REEREK - &

ERE - EIZERRALSELER L
ﬁ@ B AEEHMZEN 2 BREERH
AP - ARNZELZ TR ESEE
@mﬁﬁﬁﬁ EEARNMEREE
I & HIRRE

Investments in Subsidiaries 18. RMIBARZEKRE
Company
PN

2012 2011
—E—C—F =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Unlisted investments, at cost JELETIRE - IBNAE 43,368 43,368

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

The loan to a subsidiary included in the Company’s current assets
is unsecured, interest-bearing at the rate of 2.1% per annum and
repayable on demand or within one year.

The table below lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in

the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries, would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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18.

Investments in Subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

18.

RMtB AR ZRE #)

TEMBRRFBNAT

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of equity attributable
registration and issued share/paid-up to the Company
operations registered capital ~ AAREEEZE L
Name SR, ER CRTROEE 2012 2011 Principal activities
ARER RExib HEEMELR —=-=F —T——F FBEK
Eagle Nice (EAG) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2; 100 100 Investment holding
Ex(Bx5E)BRAR B Non-voting deferred REER
HK$10,000 (Note (a))
(2011: Ordinary HK$2;
Non-voting deferred
HK$10,000)
TER2BT
EESEETR
10,0007 7T (P 3k (a))
(=2——%F:
ERER2ET
ERFEELTR
10,0007 )
#WECOWR) HKBRAF PRC/Mainland China US$23,500,000 100 100 Manufacture and
("YM (Shantou)”) (Note ( hE AR (2011: US$23,500,000) trading of sportswear
([¥ZCLsE) 1) (K b) 23,500,000 7T and garments
(Z2—F: HEREEEDR
23,500,000%7T) S 3p%ie
HECLSR) HKBRAF PRC/Mainland China HK$15,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and
("YY (Shantou)”) (Note (b)) hE A RE (2011: HK$15,000,000) trading of sportswear
(TR C1LE) ]) (B 7% (b)) 15,000,000 7T and garments
(Z2—F: HEREEEDR
15,000,00078 7T ) Rk
Eagle Nice Development Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 (2011: HK$1) 100 100 Manufacture and
EXERERAT e 18T trading of sportswear
(ZB—%F 1 1#1) and garments
FEREEEDR
RER
Yue Mei (HK) Garment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 (2011: HK$1) 100 100 Manufacture and
WE(ER)BRERAR B 18T trading of sportswear
(Z2—%F 1 181) and garments
HEEREEEDR
R
Maitex (EAG) Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 100 Manufacture and
R (EEEE)BRAF B (2011: HK$1,000) trading of sportswear
1,000/87T and garments

(ZZ——%F : 11,0008 1)

EEREEEDR
BB
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18. Investments in Subsidiaries (Continued) 18. RHBARZERE#)
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of equity attributable
registration and issued share/paid-up to the Company
operations registered capital ~ AAFEEERE AL
Name MR R ERTROEE 2012 2011 Principal activities
NGRS REEHY HEIMER —Z——F —T—F FEEK
BERERRRXER AR PRC/Mainland China HK$40,000,000 (2011: 100 100 Manufacture and
("Maitex PRC") (Note (b)) R B ARE HK$40,000,000) trading of sportswear
(T=RES ) (FisE(b) 40,000,000 7T and garments
(Z2—%&: HEREEEDR
40,000,000/7T) KK
King Eagle (EAG) Limited Hong Kong HK$1(2011: HK$1) 100 100 Manufacture and
cE(BXKE)ERAH B 87T trading of sportswear
(ZZ—F 1 1871) and garments
HEREEEDR
KB
SEOLBE)RKERAH PRC/Mainland China US$2,680,000 (2011: 100 100 Manufacture and
("KE (Shantou)”) (Note (b)) R B ARE US$2,680,000) trading of sportswear
([SECLEE) ) (KizEDb)) 2,680,000% 7T and garments
(Z2—%&: HEREEEDR
2,680,000 7T) KK
BN RESIRER AT PRC/Mainland China US$4,000,000 (2011: 100 100 Manufacture and
("Hung Eagle Garment") B A RE US$4,000,000) trading of sportswear
(Note (b)) 4,000,0003 7T and garments
(TBREE D) (P EE (b)) (Z2—%: HEREEEDR
4,000,000%7T) KK
Eagle Nice (Indonesia) Holdings Ltd Hong Kong HK$1 (2011: HKS$1) 100 100 Investment holding
EX(ENE)ERBR AT B 187 RERR
(ZZ—F 1 1871)
PT. Eagle Nice Indonesia Indonesia US$21,000,000 (2011: 100 100 Manufacture and
(“EN Indonesia”) e US$6,000,000) trading of sportswear
([BxEED 21,000,000 7T and garments
(ZF——F: HEREBREDR
6,000,000%7T) R
Eagle Nice (Jiangxi) Garment Hong Kong HK$10,000 (2011: 100 100 Investment holding
Limited B8 HK$10,000) WA
BEX(IFBERERAH 10,000/7C
(Z2—%:
10,000/ 7T)
Ex(EL)EXERAR PRC/Mainland China US$22,370,000 (2011: 100 100 Manufacture and
(“EN (Yifeng)") (Note (b)) B REARE US$21,490,000) trading of sportswear
([BX(EL) ) (D) 22,370,000 7T and garments
(ZF——F: HEREREDR
21,490,000%7T) R

Agq
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18.

19.

Investments in Subsidiaries (Continued) 18. RMBARZRE @
Notes: MEE
(a) The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends, no rights to (@) AR ERRE R EEFRRRE - B
attend or vote at general meetings and no rights to receive any surplus BRRAGHES FIRE - UREFHE
assets in a return of capital in a winding-up (other than the nominal REEAEESEMFBEE OFRE
amount paid up or credited as paid-up on such shares, after the sum of S EAA#%8100,000,000,000,000
HK$100,000,000,000,000 per ordinary share has been distributed to the BEARTRAREBRREAR - B
holders of the ordinary shares of the company in such winding-up). Betn 2 B R 3 A RR S (R B 7 W) H 1B FR
I
(b) YM (Shantou), YY (Shantou), Maitex PRC, KE (Shantou), Hung Eagle (b) WECLEE) - MECILEE) - BRES - &
Garment and EN (Yifeng) are registered as wholly-foreign-owned EOLE) - BREEREX(EE) BIRE
enterprises under PRC law. REAEAM 2 INEBERE -
All of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company. LA EM B AR AR R EEES -
Inventories 19. FE
Group
AEE
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%F
HK$000 HK$'000
THET T
Raw materials GRS 118,380 79,010
Work in progress TR 82,003 62,410
Finished goods BIRK G 44,578 50,829
244,961 192,249

' 4

Agq
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20.

21.

102

Accounts and Bills Receivables 20.

The Group's accounts and bills receivables mainly relate to a

few recognised and creditworthy customers. The credit period

is generally for a period of 30 to 45 days. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables to minimise
the credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by the
management of the Group. The accounts and bills receivables are
non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

TGS S

REE 2 BWRANFIEEERE TR
REERFNTFAM - SEH—KA30
REASK » NEB AR EERKFIA
REFBEEE - BEERRERZ&IEK
oo BT Z AEER AR S IR R A
B - RERFEEBE AR SRR -

BEREHMRZBEESRRBERBEER
HHRRE DT T -

Group

rEE
2012 2011
= —F %
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Within 30 days 30K 117,122 67,091
31 to 60 days 31 RE60X 22,766 12,877
61 to 90 days 61 KZE90K 4 659
Over 90 days 90K LA E 2,063 727
141,955 81,354

The above balances are neither past due nor impaired. The financial
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which
there was no recent history of default.

PA_ B ERI m A RORE o BRI LI
Wk SRS ER AR SR E B + AT HIN R R
FCER

Cash and Cash Equivalents 21. RERBAELEEEAR
Group Company
rEE ENE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B-CF —T——F e —T——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TAET THERT TAET
Cash and bank balances HE RIRTET 175,583 183,037 369 269
Non-pledged time deposits with ~ REZIHE LR =1EA 2
original maturity of less than FEREITH
three months 166,241 - - -
Non-pledged time deposits with ~ REZIHABE=1EF 2
original maturity of over three FFERTEHER
months 30,162 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents HE KRS ZEEE 371,986 183,037 369 269

Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited &35 (BIFR)ZERAR A A
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21.

22.

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances

of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"”) amounted to
HK$264,330,000 (2011: HK$86,606,000). RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies; however, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

Accounts and Bills Payables

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills payables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

21.

22.

HERBEESEEER @)

RIBEBR - AEBUARE(TARE])
FHE®IR© K IRTT 417 /264,330,000
TT(—Z——4F : 86,606,000/87T) - AR
BASERLRAEME  AMRESR
(B0 K Bk W SN B IR AR DI LA IR 450 - D
NIEBIRMRTE - A% EEL S RERE
IR ONE S5 2 SRITIE AR KR s H A

FRIRITHIRSIRE B IRITHERM R 2%
BERRBA L - ARERNRERETE
EE—HE=EANERERFTR LD
PR RS HATE AT SR R BRER A B, o $R1T4S
R TFN BEE BT 8 RERFDER < R
e

B IR R RS

RERARZ EBARARZBRRIEERA
HIRRER AT AT -

Group

rEE
2012 2011
—E-C=F —E——f
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within 90 days 90K 99,548 70,921
91 to 180 days 91 RE180K 556 1,054
181 to 365 days 181 RE365K 749 73
Over 365 days 365K E 2,511 1,780
103,364 73,828

The accounts and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on 45-day terms.

ENEREEBRAEEERER  EEH—®K
BASK o
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23. Banking Facilities 23. BITHEAEBE
As at 31 March 2012, the Group's banking facilities were secured RZE——F=A=+—H ' ~x&EEZIR
by the following: THEAEEUTISEERER
(i) corporate guarantees executed by the Company to the (i) 7K A 8] %8 3 LA 356,000,000 7% JT
extent of HK$356,000,000 (2011: HK$46,000,000) of RRZARER(ZE——F
which an aggregate amount of HK$193,825,000 was 46,000,000 7T) « EFRERAAH
utilised; and 193,825,000/ 7T : &
(ii) unlimited corporate guarantees executed by nine (2011: (ii) ARBANR(ZE——F : IK)
four) subsidiaries of the Company. MEARELAERE LR E
= e
24. Accrued Liabilities and Other Payables 24, ETtEERHAMEARKIE
Group Company
S 3 NG|
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-CF T4 —E-CF —T——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx FAT T TAT
Deferred income R A 1,914 1,875 - -
Other payables H it FE {15008 35,352 56,602 - -
Accruals fEtER 43,579 35,687 157 452
80,845 94,164 157 452
Other payables of the Group at 31 March 2012 included a subsidy REER ——HF=ZA=1T—H®HH

of HK$6,646,000 (2011: HK$9,189,000) received from the People’s
Government of Yifeng County, Jiangxi Province, the PRC for the
construction cost of basic infrastructure to be incurred by the Group
for the development of the Jiangxi Project. During the year, an
amount of HK$2,543,000 (2011: HK$1,775,000) was utilised and
has been offset against the construction cost.

Agq
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25. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings 25. FTERITER
Group TEE
Effective
interest rate
(%) BEIRFIZ(%) Maturity FH A (pFEE) 2012 2011
(Note) —EB-—F —T——%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Current BN A 1.05% t02.21% 1.05%%2.21% On demand fEE K 418,896 -
Bank loans — unsecured  $R1TE R —
IR AR
Company AT
Effective
interest rate
(%) BERFIZR(%) Maturity EH8 B (M) 2012 2011
(Note) —EB-——F —T——%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Current BN HA 1.05% 102.21% 1.05%%2.21% On demand EZE Rk 234,000 =
Bank loans — unsecured  $R1TE R —
il
Note: B 5T
At the end of reporting period, HK$184,896,000 of the bank borrowings of RIS HEIR - 418,896,000/ 0 2 IRITHE - HA
HK$418,896,000, were supported by (i) corporate guarantees executed by the 184,896,000/ 7T LA (DA A RIFE A RIEAR © R (ii)A
Company and (ii) corporate guarantees executed by certain subsidiaries of the ANRINETHEBABMERRER -
Company.
Since the Group’s and the Company’s bank loans contain repayment on-demand HARAEBRANRNRITERDSEERERZ
clauses, the loans are included within current interest-bearing bank borrowings B ERGTARNBRG BRRITEE - UOMREE
and analysed into bank loans repayable on demand. KERZIBITER

%
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25.

26.

Agq

106

Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings (Continued) 25. FTERITER @)
Based on the maturity terms of the bank loans, the amounts BIFIRITE R 2 B - AEBRAAR]
repayable in respect of the Group’s and the Company’s bank loan RITERENSEITAT :
are analysed as follows:
Group Company
rEE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-—F ZE=—F —E-—F ZE=—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FAT FTET FHT
Analysed into: paxnv=1
Within one year —FR 145,250 - 39,000 -
In the second year E_F 31,250 - - -
In the third to fourth years, E=FRFENF
inclusive (BREEEWEF) 242,396 - 195,000 -
418,896 - 234,000 -
Deferred Tax Liabilities 26. EEFEEE
Group rEE
Withholding
taxes on
undistributed
Accelerated profits on
tax Asset PRC
depreciation  revaluation subsidiaries Total
Fh B Y A =]
Nz RO TR
HERE EEEM ZFEMB st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2010 RZZE—ZETFMA—AH 493 14,892 8,739 24,124
Deferred tax debited to FARERE W RN
the consolidated income ZIBEFER B (MIEE10)
statement during the year
(Note 10) 324 83 5,185 5,592
Deferred tax debited to equity FRRE ARG 2
during the year EERIA - 3,048 = 3,048
Withholding tax on repatriation 1 B} /& A 7] 2 F|
on earnings from subsidiaries &1~ Y815
in the PRC - - (3,079) (3,079)
Exchange realignment [E 5 % - 520 - 520
At 31 March 2011 and RZE—F=A
1 April 2011 =t+—HK
—ZT——FMA—H 817 18,543 10,845 30,205
Deferred tax credited to FERFFAGRAREE
the consolidated income ZIEFERIA
statement during the year (Mf7E10)
(Note 10) (307) - - (307)
Deferred tax debited to equity FRRE AR Z
during the year EIERIAE - 4,368 - 4,368
Exchange realignment [E 5 A% - 853 - 853
At 31 March 2012 R-ZE——F=H
=+—H 510 23,764 10,845 35,119
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26.

27.

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Continued) 26. EZEMEERE @)
Pursuant to the PRC Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on BIEPEFE - R B ARRER I Z IMNER
dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment BREMIIEREET IR Z IS A BAEUR
enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is 10%FEHIT « ZRMER_ZZNF—A
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings accrued after —BAEW WERARZZEZT+LF+=A
31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied =+—BRERELEZAEF o M B KRR
if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction IR EE 2 Al AR AT SRR ARL) - ARl
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rates are FHEEEREMBEE - AEE 2 @A
5% and 10%. In estimating the withholding taxes on dividends EH5% K 10% ° 7Fh T 5% E B A FEAK
expected to be distributed by those subsidiaries established in YHBARS—EENF—A—HREL
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January B 22 7 8 HA R 22 AR B PR A AR O TR AN BB -
2008, the directors have made assessment based on the factors BEEFLBEREBEBRREAEFEEBEE
which included dividend policy and the level of capital and working AIRRRIIFEANEBESERE -
capital required for the Group's operations in the foreseeable
future.
At 31 March 2012, there were no significant unrecognised deferred RZE——F=A=+—H LEE it
tax liabilities (2011: Nil) for withholding taxes that would be payable RZE1% - ] RAK - WERBNAR 7K
on the unremitted earnings of the Company’s subsidiaries expected B R RITEER S 9k B R P SR A F FE S TR H0
to be distributed, after considering the above mentioned factors, in M EAKREREEHRBEAE(ZE——
the foreseeable future. Fom|m)o
The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$1,272,000 REBRBBESE 2HIAEE1,272,000
(2011: HK$8,530,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting BT (ZZE——4% : 8,530,000 7T ) A] &
against future taxable profits of the company in which the losses PR HA AR VR SHEE A IS 1B Y & B B 18 JEERTH
arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland China A e R AEBNRTBEKREEEL
and Indonesia of HK$43,031,000 (2011: HK$4,351,000) and 2 BIEEE S 5 /43,031,000 T (=ZF
HK$21,312,000 (2011: HK$12,152,000), respectively, that will ——%F : 4,351,000 7T ) &% 21,312,000
expire in five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. T(—ZT——4% : 12,152,000/ 7C) R H
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of those FRNEE - RERERBERTIEN -
losses as the directors consider that it is uncertain whether sufficient FEBEITHETE AR T 5 FERT 5K 85
taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can A AR E TR IEE R - P DA R SRIEET
be utilisd. There are no income tax consequences attaching to the TBEE o AN B [A E IR E K 35 A% BT 4 B
payment of dividends by the company to its shareholders. EATISHER -
Issued Capital 27. BRITRAK
Company
¥ NN
2012 2011
—B--F =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Authorised: SRR
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 10,000,000,000/% A% &
each 0.01BTZ FiBAR 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETREE
499,680,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 499,680,000 FR%EE
each 0.018 T2 L@ 4,997 4,997 e
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28.

108

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)

for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group'’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company'’s directors, including independent non-executive
directors, other employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or
services to the Group and customers of the Group. The Scheme
became effective on 6 August 2003 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in

issue at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to independent non-executive directors’ approval in
advance. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within

21 days from the date of the offer upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the directors,

and commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date
which is not later than five years from date of the offer of the share
options or the expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of the offer of
the share options; (i) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares.

No share options have been granted under the Scheme as at
31 March 2012 or up to the date of approval of these financial
statements.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited &35 (BIFR)ZERAR A A
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29.

Reserves 29. f#fE
Group rEH
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein AEBRARFERBRFE 2 #EEER
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated HEFFBERUERERP ZGEERE
statement of changes in equity of the financial statements. RED o
The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between AREBERFEIRANRIRIE T =4F
the aggregate of the nominal value of the share capitals of NAZEBEA(EA ) FTKEERNTEB AR
the subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant to a group HIANEE A% - EBAR R FERR M AT
reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) in August 2003, and the Z MR AHEE & A 1,000,000 8 &% EE
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued in 0.0 B TIZEEBEARIERERNBE 2=
exchange therefor and the existing 1,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 B o
each credited as fully paid, at par.
In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, subsidiaries RIBEABHERG - £ RFMAOKER
registered in the PRC are required to transfer 10% of their profits RIZERBRFLEEN10% (GER BT R 5
after tax, as determined under the PRC accounting regulations, BT )EBRSLITRAGREE BE2ZHEE
to the statutory surplus reserve, until the balance of the reserve RIS RER HE B MERS0% - EF#
reaches 50% of their respective registered capitals. Subject to certain R GIFTECE TREFRET @ SAE&8%
restrictions as set out in the relevant PRC regulations, the statutory FEER BRI RTEEE -
surplus reserve may be used to offset against accumulated losses.
Company ARF]
Retained
Share profit/
premium Capital (accumulated
account reserve losses) Total
Notes [%7i) BaAl,/
BT RER EXfE  (REER) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT TAT TAT
At 1 April 2010 R-Z—TFMA—H 472,586 43,088 (53,503) 462,171
Profit and total comprehensive £ Ayl 2 2 [ U 25
income for the year 4azs 11 - - 103,784* 103,784
Final 2010 dividend ZE-TERPRE 12 - - (34,978) (34,978)
Interim 2011 dividend —E——FHERE 12 - = (59,962) (59,962)
At 31 March 2011 and RZZE——%F
1 April 2011 =A=+—8k
—T——FmA—H 472,586 43,088 (44,659) 471,015
Profit and total comprehensive — FPEF| & 2 E UGS
income for the year k) 11 - - 141,956* 141,956
Final 2011 dividend T —ERYRE 12 = = (14,990) (14,990)
Interim 2012 dividend ZE-CFHBRE 12 - - (34,978) (34,978)
At 31 March 2012 WZE2——F=A=+—H 472,586 43,088 47,329 563,003
i The balance included dividend income from a subsidiary of * ZEHRBERENE R E MR E K

HK$142,000,000 (2011: HK$105,000,000) and interest income from a
subsidiary of HK$4,250,000 (2011: Nil).

The capital reserve of the Company represents the excess of the
then consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the
Company pursuant to the Reorganisation over the nominal value of
the share capital of the Company issued in exchange thereof. Under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the capital reserve may
be distributed to the shareholders of the Company, provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

A 142,000,000 & 7L ( =T — — 4
105,000,000/ 7t ) K 7 £ 42 A 4,250,000
BL(ZT——F &)

RRBEANFHEIE AR RRIBEETKEE
MBARERMNEEEEFE  BHAR
AR MET 2 MAEEZ Z5 - RE
HERERAE  BARERNDIRTAR
BIRER - RN EREERIR NS AR
RRBWMAREBEEEATERDIEE
g o
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30.

31.

110

—#=R=+—H)

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash 30.

Flows

)

Major non-cash transaction
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the
Group had the following major non-cash transaction:

During the year, deposits for property, plant and equipment
of HK$2,205,000 (2011: HK$4,192,000) were transferred
to property, plant and equipment upon acceptance by and
delivery to the Group (Note 16).

RERERERME

(i) EEBHFBRERSH
P AR B B SRR EL AL EB R PR ER SN -
AEEEATEEFRLRS -

RER » 2,205,0008C(—F——
F 1 4,192,000/ 70) 2 W3 - B

B2 ES R A EE R KA
FERNEEREME - BE IR
#H(FIax16) ©

(ii) Deregistration of subsidiaries (i) FFHEMBAT
2012 2011
—E-—fF %
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FHET
Net liabilities disposed of: BEHETIISENAETE
Prepayments, deposits and FERTFRIE « e REM
other receivables FEYRIA - 30
Accounts payable FERTBRIA - (67)
Other payables and accruals L FE TR IE I FE R T FOE - (221)
Tax payable FERI 1A - (6,666)
Realisation of exchange fluctuation reserve i K EhfEiE 2 B35 - (11,739)
- (18,663)
Gain on deregistration (note 5) e (M7E5) - 18,663
There was no net inflow/outflow of cash and cash BE-_Z——F=A=1+—HL*F
equivalents in respect of the deregistration of subsidiaries & WEREHNE QR IRE
during the year ended 31 March 2011. MRS RASESEER 2FRA
piifasi
Contingent Liabilities 31. RAAE

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities not
provided for at the end of the reporting period (2011: Nil).

As at 31 March 2012, the Company has given corporate guarantees
to banks to the extent of HK$356,000,000 (2011: HK$46,000,000)
for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited &35 (BIFR)ZERAR A A

REEHIR - NEBE W B AR B
EAFRABR(ZT——F &)

B’\ ——F=ZA=1+—8 ARERE

Hﬁ% AER Z RITHAEERERIER
77 ¥E i 5 % 356,000,0008 7T ( =& — —
F 1 46,000,000/ 70 ) A A HELR ©
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32.

33.

—#£=A=+—8)

Operating Lease Arrangements

32.

The Group leased certain of its office, factories and staff quarters
under operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for

terms ranging from one to two years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

falling due as follows:

RERERH

AEBERBEEHELHEAEEETHA
E BEMEIGBE FEIMHHBNF—

E-FFEF-

R SF - AEERNTTHSC LSRR
BT 2 R IR S BN T 5 R
i+

2012 2011

= e

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FAT

Within one year —FR - 2,729
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FFEFAF(BIEEEMSF) - -
- 2,729

Commitments 33. A&IE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 32 e b SCHEE325 5 2 AL AR E AR - R
above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the SERBEIHR 2 EARAFELT
end of the reporting period:
2012 2011
—E-CF —T——%F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THT FHT
Contracted, but not provided for: BEIABEREE
Construction of factories and BRIAIBEE 2WER
purchases of machinery and EEMIE LR
equipment for the Jiangxi Project 35,225 83,966
Renovation of factories for the investment RBHEREEE 2HE
project in Indonesia 18,507 33,757
Purchases of items of property, BEAE  #SREREER
plant and equipment 1,113 563
Renovation of factories &R 233 1,354
55,078 119,640
Authorised, but not contracted for: DIREERETY
Investment in the Jiangxi Project RERNIRIER 51,747 103,797

The Company did not have any other significant commitments at

the end of the reporting period (2011: Nil).

MIREHIR - AR B EALfTHE M E A
E(ZF——F:8|)-

ﬁ/
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34.

Agq

112

Related Party Transactions 3. BEALRS
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these (a) BRSBTS Rk B FTafsll 2 X
financial statements, the Group had the following material S9N REFEBEEA TETEKXR
transactions with related parties as follows: REWAT :
2012 2011
= —F %
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Subcontracting fees payable to L AEEREZ
related companies (note) e B (KiFE) - 6,291
Note: Fff3E
The subcontracting fees paid to # || & #3X AR A &), which is a ABRBENXNFHUEEHEKRERAR
subsidiary of Yue Yuen Industrial (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 00551), RUTIE(EE)BRARRORE
was made according to terms similar to those offered by the Group’s 00551) ZMiB AR - WIRBRAEE IR
non-related subcontractors. The transactions ceased during the year A BEATRME Z BOUETETT - ZER
ended 31 March 2011. ZERBE_T——F=ZA=1t—HLF
EHIE -
The above related party transactions constituted continuing connected BHE-T——F=A=+—HULFE " £t
transactions during the year ended 31 March 2011 as defined in Chapter MEAEA TR ZER EMRAUE14AER
14A of the Listing Rules. EZFHEMERS °
The directors are of the opinion that the above transactions were BEERR - LRI AKE 2 —KE
conducted in the ordinary course of business of the Group. BEBBEPET -
(b) The directors are the key management personnel of the (b) BEERAEEZEEEIBAE -

Group. Details of their remuneration are disclosed in note 8
to the financial statements.

Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited &35 (BIFR)ZERAR A A

EH M 2 BRI IS IR M8



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
e BT )
(31 March 2012)

(=F—

35.

—F=A=+—H)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank borrowings and cash and cash equivalents. The

main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for
the Group's operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as accounts and bills receivables, other
receivables, accounts and bills payables, accrued liabilities and other
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank borrowings
with floating interest rates.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the floating interest rate
borrowings in order to manage its interest rate risk. The interest-
bearing bank borrowings, and cash and cash equivalents are stated
at amortised cost and not revalued on a periodic basis. Floating rate
interest income and expenses are credited/charged to the income
statement as earned/incurred.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably

35.

MERREE 2 BERBXK

AEENTEZeMITAREAERITEE
A kALEFERE - ZFEMTAEZ
TREMRBEAKELEMRES - X
SEEARYRRNFE - R
FEHEEITA&KTF FEFT B E R AR

EREEMEREENAE  DRNEEE
H%E}%EE €

AEESRMTAZ T ERBRTIREHXE
B SNERR RBESREBRIEER
% EESRHABEEESREBRER

ZIRER o W IR

MRER
REBAAR Z TIZM RS E R E 2 H
AR BB RGFENRITIEERR -

AEBENESREATRERAEER
MERER - FFERITRE R kREE
BEEBREBHEKAAR TS EHE
filr o 8 H&A&iﬁ#”ﬂlmi‘%ﬁzﬁ%ﬁﬁi/
BEA TSR K

TRERMAALMEERETE A%

possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held Bar(RZEEEZE)HFE L2
constant, of the Group’s net profit (through the impact on floating BEE BRI -
rate borrowings).
Group NEE
Increase in Decrease
interest rate in net profit
FIZ= 18 hn FFR D
(basis points) HK$'000
(E&) THT
2012 —E——4F 100 4,189
2011 —E——4F 100 -
Company PN/
Increase in Decrease
interest rate in net profit
FIZ=HE N FEFIH A
(basis points) HK$'000
(EE) FET
2012 —E—CF 100 2,340
2011 —E——4F 100 -
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35.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from a substantial portion of sales or purchases by operating
units in United States Dollars (“US$"”) and RMB. As the foreign
currency risks arising from the sales and purchases can be set off
with each other, the Group believes its exposure to exchange rate
risk is minimal. It is the policy of the Group to continue maintaining
the balance of its sales and purchases in the same currency.
However, as the Group's financial statements are reported in Hong
Kong dollars, there will be a translation credit to the exchange
fluctuation reserve as a result of RMB appreciation. The majority
of the Group'’s operating assets are located in Mainland China and
denominated in RMB.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, management monitors the foreign exchange
exposures and will consider hedging the significant foreign currency
exposures should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of

the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's
net profit (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities).

35.

BEEREE s BERBE @)

S L

AEFEAXRZEEER - BRARAREIE
MEBEMART(ET ) R AREET
BEEL RN BEEELZINERBRA LA
R AKEREEERYE ZINERKR
Bif - ARBEREEE S ABREEET
BEZVFEHE - AT - R ARE 28
BHRRTVAETLER  ARETHESSE
EETAE R R B EHE L - NEE
REbD EEEHLNPBIARE - WAA
REGHE -

REHE B AT IR P T INE SRR o
Am - BEESESINERR - YENFE
R EBEPEANIMNERE o

THRIITARBERRIRE BRTEM B
2 ABEY(RMEDERTE) MUA%E
EAF” BB (A EER B
TEED) -

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
exchange rate in net profit
EREA #R 0,
(TB&) (Ri2)
HK$'000
FHET
2012 —E-CF
If HK$ weakens against RMB BT R ARERE 5% 141
If HK$ strengthens against RMB BT ARBHE (5%) (141)
2011 —T——%F
If HK$ weakens against RMB BT HARBEE 5% 237
If HK$ strengthens against RMB WETHARERE (5%) (237)
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35.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35.

Policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g. accounts and bills
receivables) and the projected cash flows from operations.

The Group maintains a balance between continuity of funding
and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank borrowings
and other banking facilities. The directors have reviewed the
Group's working capital and capital expenditure requirements and
determined that the Group has no significant liquidity risk. The
maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end

of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, was less than one year.

The loan agreements contain a repayment on-demand clauses
giving the banks the unconditional right to call in the loans at any
time and therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity profile,
the bank borrowings is classified as “on demand”. Notwithstanding
the above clause, the directors do not believe that the loans will be
called in its entirety within 12 months, and they consider that the
loans will be repaid in accordance with the maturity dates as set
out in the loan agreements. This evaluation was made considering:
the financial position of the Group and the Company at the date

of approval of the financial statements; the Group’s and the
Company’s compliance with the loan covenants; the lack of events
of default, and the fact that the Group and the Company have
made all previously scheduled repayments on time. The maturity
profile of the Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, was as follows:

BRREEc BEERBEK ®)

REBEEER
AEEFAEEERABDESRATAER
SRR AR - RETASZEHMBT
AREBEE(MERERRER) 2 558
R AREEH R R RERA -

AEEEBER BRITEEREMRT
FE  #RESREHEREEEZ BN
o EEERNAEENEEESNE
AXHFFR > URA/AEELESKAR
PESRAR - AEBEMBEERBREHR
BEKNRBBENFTIER ZBIBBER DR —
& o

ERmEE e T RITARERITERE
SREEERZGER - Bt - RITEEZE
HERGERMREREE] - BEANL
G BEEXTRAZSEREMN 128 A
& RE R MR 2 BB EE © it
FHATIER « REBRARRRUBERE
#ERHZ BBAR - NEBRARREE
STEREH  UEBLEENEMAREE
B A A R A SRR BB AR - IR
HIR - AEBAERESORBRNFGE
ZERRITERIBBERNT

Group Company
rEE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—ET—_F —T——4F —ET—_F —T——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHT FTHERT FHET
Analysed into: Paxiv=1E
With one year —FR 150,933 - 42,883 -
In the second year £ 35,833 - 3,747 -
In the third to fourth years, E=FEFFFE
inclusive (BREEEMSE) 250,385 - 202,494 -
437,151 - 249,124 -
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35.

Policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group'’s policy that all customers who wish to trade
on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties, there is generally no requirement for collateral.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents and other receivables, arises from default
of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments

to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011.

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which is total
current assets divided by total current liabilities. The Group'’s policy is
to keep the current ratio above 1.

36. Approval of the Financial Statements 36.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors of the Company on 28 June 2012.

Agq
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corporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
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Hong Kong
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